
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 18th December, 
2019

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt 
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall.  There is 
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings 
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair 
user or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email 
the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to 
assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect 
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents 
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot 
of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' 
for which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither 
reports nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio 
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used 
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and 
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your 
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings 
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect 
will be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting 
of the City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and 
audio being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their 
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would 
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might 
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing 
the officer mentioned below.

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to 
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please 
contact Ellen Meachen, Democratic and Electoral Services Assistant, Guildhall, 
Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722006 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk



3

Audit and Governance Committee
Wednesday, 18 December 2019

Members of the Committee:-
Chairman: Councillor Alan Amos (C)

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo)

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo)
Councillor Nida Hassan (C)
Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C)

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G)
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)
Councillor Richard Udall (L)

C = Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES To receive details of any Member 
nominated to attend the meeting in place of 
a Member of the Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST To receive any declarations of interest.

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any item on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. MINUTES 
Page(s) 1 - 4

Of the meetings held on 18th September 
2019 (attached) and 9th October 2019 (to 
follow) to be approved and signed.

5. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT TO 31ST OCTOBER 2019 
Page(s) 5 - 20
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

That the Committee note the report.



4

6. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
FOR 2020-21 
Page(s) 21 - 28
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

That the Committee considers the draft 
annual internal audit plan and key 
performance indicators.

7. CORPORATE PROJECTS GATEWAY 
PROCESS 
Page(s) 29 - 44
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact 
Officer 

Tony Catchpowle, 
Team Manager - 
Corporate Projects and 
Transformation
Tel: 01905 722166

That the Committee notes the Project 
Management Process introduced to 
strengthen the management of key projects 
undertaken by the Council.

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.

9. ITEM INVOLVING THE 
DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT 
INFORMATION 

The Committee are invited to pass the 
following resolution:-

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of 
information as defined in Schedule 12A of 
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

10. MINUTES (EXEMPT ITEMS) Of the meeting held on 9th October 2019 (to 
follow) to be approved and signed.



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

18th September 2019

Present: Councillor Alan Amos in the Chair

Councillors Agar (Vice-Chairman), Barnes, 
Hassan, S. Hodgson, Laurenson and 
Roberts

Also in Attendance:
Natalie Ryan, Ernst & Young LLP

Officers: Mark Baldwin  Head of Finance
Andy 
Bromage

 Head of Internal Audit 
Shared Service

Shane Flynn  Corporate Director – 
Finance and Resources

Chris 
Lawrence

 Auditor

Sian Stroud  Deputy Director - 
Governance

Nina 
Warrington

 Head of Strategic 
Housing

19 Declarations of Interest 

None.

20 Public Participation 

None.

21 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th July 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

22 Internal Audit Progress Report 

The Head of the Internal Audit Shared Service presented the report which 
provided summary overviews of reviews completed in regard to the 2018/19 
Internal Audit Plan. The report indicated continued progress in regard to the 
2019/20 Internal Audit Plan with a number of reviews in progress.    The Head of 
the Internal Audit Shared Service reported for those audits that are currently in 
progress summary overviews will be brought before Committee when they are 
finalised.

The majority of the 2018/19 reports returned an assurance of moderate or above, 
with the exception of Front Line Housing (Homelessness) which was ‘limited’. The 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Service informed   Committee that a robust action 
plan has been put in place for those areas that need to be strengthened. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



18th September 2019 2

Officers responded to questions from Members relating to findings on Benefits, 
Cemeteries & Crematorium, Front Line Housing and Payroll.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report.

23 External Audit - Local Government Briefing 

The Head of Finance presented the briefing provided by the Council’s External 
Auditors which summarises key changes and issues in the external environment 
that the External Auditors consider relevant for the Committee to note. The 
document will updated and sent to the Committee regularly.

The Chair thanked the External Auditors for the good information provided.
Members commented on the content of the briefing and asked Officers questions 
about the impact of external issues for the City Council.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of the briefing note 
received from the Council’s External Auditors.

24 External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

Ms Natalie Ryan, Ernst & Young LLP, presented the External Audit – Annual Audit 
Letter 2018/19 to the Committee. The Annual Audit Letter summarises the key 
findings arising from the External Auditor’s work for the City Council for the year 
ended 31st March 2018/19.

The External Auditors provided an unqualified opinion (i.e. a ‘clean bill of health’) 
on the City Council’s Financial Statements and, Value for Money arrangements.

The Chair thanked Ernst & Young for their audit work and thanked Officers for 
their continued good work.

RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the details of the Annual Audit 
Letter for 2018/19.

25 Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 

The Deputy Director - Governance presented the Annual Report. It is part of 
CIPFA good practice to produce an annual report summarising the work of the 
Council’s Audit and Governance Committee, which is then reported to full Council.

RESOLVED: 

1. That the Committee approve the Audit and Governance Committee 
Annual Report 2018/19.

2. That the Annual Report be submitted to Council for information.

Page 2



18th September 2019 3

26 Guildhall Room Hire Charging Policy 

The Chair requested the item be put on the Agenda to support the development of 
a charging policy which will provide clarity and consistency in setting the level of 
charges for Guildhall room hire.

The Corporate Director - Finance and Resources presented the report. A Room 
Hire Charging approach has been in place at the Guildhall for some time but the 
varied use of the building and changing business needs of the City Council has 
resulted in the need for a reviewed and updated policy.

Members asked about arrangements where groups used the Guildhall without 
charge, or at a reduced charge, but were not engaged on activities in partnership 
with the Council. The Corporate Director proposed the wording of section 5.4 to 
be amended to reflect this to:

‘To support the work of partner organisations that are furthering the aims of the 
Council, in co-operation with Members and Officers of the Council, in bringing 
social, economic and environmental benefits to the City’.

Members asked about the inclusion of Civic functions, not necessarily in 
connection with the Mayor, for instance use of the Guildhall for medal 
presentations. The Director of Finance and Resources proposed the wording of 
section 5.5 of the policy be amended to reflect this to:

‘To support events that are led by the Mayor and/or Civic Officers’.

The Corporate Director also drew Members’ attention to section 5.7 of the policy 
which allows for the Democratic and Civic Services Manager or the Managing 
Director to use discretion where appropriate to reduce or waive charges.

RESOLVED: That the draft Guildhall Room Hire Charging Policy be 
considered by the Committee.

27 Corporate Governance Action Plan: Progress Report 

The Deputy Director – Governance presented the report which demonstrates 
progress being made to deliver the Corporate Governance Action Plan. The Deputy 
Director – Governance asked Committee Members for their thoughts on the 
proposed Toolkit for Members on Outside Bodies and Member Training on 
Corporate Governance.

Members welcomed this proposal but some noted they preferred the term 
“Guidance” to “Toolkit”. They commented that the Toolkit for Members on Outside 
Bodies would be a useful resource to be included in Member Induction Packs and 
available on the Members website. Members also suggested that the item should 
include a wider Council Members consultation.

Members discussed Member training in a broader context. It was acknowledged 
that while there were some core elements essential for all Members, on the whole 
training could be targeted at individual Members’ special areas of interest and the 
business of particular committees.  They agree that an all-Member survey to 
gauge wider preferences in regard to training would be useful.

Page 3



18th September 2019 4

RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the progress being made to deliver 
the actions set out in the Corporate Governance Action Plan.

28 Sansome Walk Decommissioning Lessons Learnt 

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented the report detailing a 
‘lessons learnt’ review of the Sansome Walk Swimming Pool decommissioning 
project.

Members were concerned that they had not received the exempt report providing 
legal advice on the item with sufficient time to consider the item in its entirety. 
The Chair proposed an additional meeting of the Committee be convened to allow 
Members more time to reflect on the report in light of the exempt report.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report, subject to any actions 
the Committee wish to take as a result of the extraordinary meeting.

29 Any Other Business 

None.

30 Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information 

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act.

31 Sansome Walk Decommissioning Lessons Learnt 

RESOLVED: That the item be deferred for discussed at an extraordinary 
meeting of the Committee.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00 pm to 8.55 pm

Chairman at the meeting on
18th December 2019

Page 4



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 18th December 2019

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal Audit 
Shared Service

Subject:   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 31st OCTOBER 2019

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee note the report.

2. Background

2.1 To provide an update on Internal Audit’s progress towards meeting its objectives as 
set out in the audit plan for 2019/2020 as approved by the Audit Committee on 20th 
March 2019.  

2.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2018 to “maintain in accordance with proper practices an adequate and effective 
system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control”.

3.  Summary of Activity:

3.1 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

3.2 Progress continues to be made in regard to the 2019/20 plan with the following 
audits: 

3.3 finalised since the last committee:
 Museums
 Health and Safety Follow Up

3.4 awaiting management response or clearance
 Procurement
 ICT

3.5 and, on-going as at the 31st October 2019 and progressing through the testing 
stage:

 Debtors
 Creditors
 Main Ledger
 Treasury Management
 Council Tax
 NNDR 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



3.6 Confirmation of the level of assurance and summary details of the outturns in each 
case will be provided for committee perusal when they have been finalised.

3.7 A rolling testing programme on Debtors and Creditors commenced in Q1 and is 
continuing.  Testing results so far do not indicate any new or emerging risks to be 
brought to the attention of Committee. The rolling testing programme will continue 
through Q2 and will be reported at the next Committee. 

3.8 The report commissioned by the Internal Audit Committee concerning lessons learnt 
in regard to the Sansome Walk Swimming Pool project was finalised and reported 
separately at the last Committee.

3.9 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

3.10 Reports completed since the 18th September 2019 in regard to the 2019-20 
Internal Audit Plan.

3.11 Museums

3.12 The review found the following areas of the system were working well:
 The knowledge, commitment and values demonstrated by the staff to the 

Service
 The Security procedures within the Worcester Art Gallery and Museum for 

Loaned Artwork.
 The Project Management and monitoring of Grant funds.
 Membership scheme which generates income and relationship building with 

the members.

3.13 There is also a project under consideration to look at the current entrance and foyer 
arrangements of the Worcester Art Gallery and Museum including security 
arrangements.

3.14 The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be 
strengthened:

 Payment Card Standards Training
 Security
 Café Contracts
 Loaned Items
 Fees and Charges

3.15 There was 1 ‘high’, 2 ‘medium’ and 2 ‘low’ priority recommendations reported. 

    Type of Audit:  Full System
Report issued: 20th September 2019
Assurance:  Moderate

3.16 Health and Safety Follow Up

3.17 People Services have made good progress in developing the Learning Lounge and 
have taken the opportunity to widen the scope as well as including those resulting 
from the Health & Safety (Operations) 2018/19 Internal Audit.  This has seen the 
Learning Lounge become more accessible and useful by building in additional 

Page 6



functions to support the learning and record keeping requirements for the various 
environmental operations job profiles.

3.18 There remains an outstanding risk as there are staff where environmental operations 
do not hold evidence of the completion of various training. However, by developing 
the Learning Lounge, this has meant that the risk is now known and has been 
mitigated significantly since the original audit. Managers can now identify gaps in 
staff training and provide the platform to allow operations to prioritise and monitor 
staff training.

3.19 The Learning Lounge has been built to allow evidence to be scanned and attached to 
an employee’s record. This will remove the need to retain paper records at the depot 
and will provide a more robust process.

3.20 Once previous training records have been scanned onto the system and all risk 
assessments have been entered and assigned to the job profile, with agreement 
from the Head of Environmental Operations, the alert function will be switched on so 
managers and employees will be sent reminders when refresher or mandatory 
training is required. 

3.21 Risk assessments and safe operating procedures are currently being reviewed and 
input onto the learning lounge so that the manager can easily view any staff that 
have not read and agreed to them. The handbook has been drafted and is going 
through final stages of editing.

3.22 Once the automatic alerts have been switched on and in agreement with People 
Services and the Head of Environmental Operations, it will be the responsibility of 
the environmental operations managers to ensure staff complete or attend the 
relevant training, monitor it and attach evidence within the system. Managers will 
ensure that training sessions are well attended so that they remain value for money.

3.23 The direction of travel since the issue of the original report dated 20th December 
2018 in which 2 ‘high’, 2 ‘medium’ and 1 ‘low’ priority recommendations were 
reported has been extremely positive.  Although further actions are necessary the 
arrangements deployed to date have reduced the overall risk.  With the planned 
improvements there will be a further mitigation of risk in the near future.  

3.24 A summary table is provided below of the finalised audits:

2019/20 Assurance
Museums Moderate
Health and Safety Follow Up N/a but very positive direction of travel is evident 

4. National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

4.1 The 2018/19 NFI upload of data took place during October 2018.  Various data sets 
were required, for example, Payroll, Creditors, along with a host of others provided 
by Worcestershire Regulatory Services and Civica. WIASS can confirm that all the 
required data sets have been uploaded for Worcester City Council.  A further data 
upload is to take place commencing December 2019 in regards to the single person 
discount and electoral registration. WIASS continues to play a supporting role for all 
the Partners in regard to this exercise.

Page 7



5. Follow-Up Audits

5.1 Where appropriate follow-up audit work has been undertaken the results of which 
are compiled on an on-going basis and provided in summary form for information at 
Appendix 4.  Any material exceptions arising from audit ‘follow up’ are reported to 
Audit Committee. There are no exceptions to report at this time.

6. Risk Management

6.1 Embedding the revised risk process continues and Committee will be appraised of 
the key risk areas on a regular basis.  The Pentana system continues to be 
developed and is used to capture and report on risk.  Regular reporting has been 
established in regards to risk information with updates being brought before this 
Committee.

7. Quality Assurance Improvement Plan

7.1 WIASS delivers the audit programme in conformance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards as published by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Further 
improvement has been identified through the self assessment process which was 
carried out in April 2019 and a quality assurance improvement plan (QAIP) has been 
formulated and is reported at Appendix 5.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1 shows the progress that has been made since 1st April 2019 to the 31st 
October 2019 towards delivering the Internal Audit Plan set for the year.  As at 31st 
October 2019 a total of 200 days had been delivered against a target of 320 days for 
2019/20.

8.2 Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.  These indicators 
were agreed by Audit Committee on the 20th March 2019.

8.3 Appendix 3 shows the ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority recommendations which have 
been reported for finalised reviews.

8.4 Appendix 4 provides the Committee with audit report ‘Follow Up’ actions that have 
been undertaken to monitor audit recommendation implementation progress by 
management.

8.5 Appendix 5 provides the Committee with an update in regard to the Quality 
Assessment Improvement Plan.

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 
Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 8



APPENDIX 1

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20
as at 31st October 2019

Audit Area Original
2019/20 Plan Days Forecasted days to 

the 31/12/19
AUDIT DAYS USED 

TO 31/10/19

Core Financial Systems
(See note 1) 108 75 45

Corporate Audits (See note 3) 21 16 30
Other Systems Audits 
(See note 2) 121 71 84

Sub Total 250 161 159

Audit Management Meetings 30 21 22
Corporate Meetings / 
Reading 20 15 14

Annual Plans, Reports and 
Audit Committee support 20 15 5

Other chargeable (See note 3) 0 0 0

 Sub Total 70 51 41

 Total 320 212 200

Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole.

Note 1:      This figure includes Quality Assurance monitoring work and the Revenues and Benefits Shared 
Service audit work undertaken. A number of the ‘Core Financial Systems’ are reviewed on a rolling basis 
through Q1 to Q3 inclusive the results of which are reported in Q4.

Note 2:   A number of the budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ (e.g. consultancy, investigations) so 
the requirements can fluctuate throughout the quarters.  Over the last two quarters there has been a significant 
demand in regard to investigatory days for stage 2 complaints and other work. As a result there is an 
‘overspend’ of the original budget resulting in a requirement to apply a variation to the original plan. 

Note 3:        An additional piece of work requested by Internal Audit Committee (i.e. Sansome Walk). To 
compensate this has also resulted in a requirement to apply a variation to the original plan.   The plan variation 
requirements have been agreed on a risk based approached by the s151 Officer.

Page 9



45

30

84

75

16

71

108

21

121

0 20 40 60 80100120140

Core Financial Systems(See note 1)

Corporate Audits 

Other Systems Audits (See note 2)

Audit Plan Days 19/20

Forecasted Days to 31/12/19

Audit Days Used to 31/10/19

Comparison of Audit Days by Category 

 

320

213 200

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Audit Plan Days 19/20
Forecasted Delivery to 
31/12/19
Actual Days Delivered to 
31/10/19

Comparison of Audit Day Delivery

Comparison of Days 
Total Budget-v-Forecasted-v-Actual

AU
DI

T 
DA

Y 
CO

U
N

T

22

14

5

0

21

15

15

0

30

20

20

0

0 10 20 30

Audit Management Meetings

Corporate Meetings / Reading

Annual Plans and Reports and 
Audit Cttee Support

Other chargeable

Audit Plan Days 19/20
Forecasted Days to 31/12/19
Audit Days Used to 31/10/19

Comparison of Non Audit Days by Category

NUMBER OF DAYS

CA
TE

G
O

RY

Page 10



APPENDIX 2

Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2019-2020
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured 
against some of the following key performance indicators for 2019/20. Other key 
performance indicators link to overall governance requirements of Worcester City 
Council e.g. KPI 4, 5 and 6.  The 2019/20 position will be populated on a 
cumulative basis throughout the year.

WIASS delivers the internal audit programme in conformance with the public sector internal audit 
standards which provide the professional practice for internal auditing.

KPI Trend/Target 
requirement

2019/20 
Position (as at 
31st October 

2019)

Frequency of 
Reporting

Operational
1 No. of audits 

achieved during the 
year 

Per target Target = 12 
(minimum)

Delivered = 2  
plus 2 at draft 
report stage

When Audit Committee 
convene

2 Percentage of Plan 
delivered

>90% of agreed 
annual plan

63% When Audit Committee 
convene

3 Service productivity Positive direction 
year on year 

(Annual target 
74%)

61% When Audit Committee 
convene

Monitoring & Governance
4 No. of ‘high’ priority 

recommendations 
Downward
(minimal)

1 When Audit Committee 
convene

5 No. of moderate or 
below assurances

Downward
(minimal)

1 When Audit Committee 
convene

6 ‘Follow Up’ results Management action 
plan 

implementation 
date exceeded

(nil)

Nil to report to 
date

When Audit Committee 
convene

Customer Satisfaction
7 No. of customers 

who assess the 
service as ‘excellent’

Upward
(increasing)

1 When Audit Committee 
convene

Page 11



APPENDIX 3
‘HIGH’ AND ‘MEDIUM’ PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 2019/20

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

Audit: Museums
Overview:  Full System
Assurance:  Moderate
1 High Payment Card Standards 

Training

Testing identified there is 1 staff 
member who works within the 
Museum Shop at the Art Gallery and 
Museum that has not completed the 
Payment Card Data Standards 
Training.

Non compliance with 
required industry standards 
leading to potential fine and 
reputational damage.

All staff who undertake card payments 
but have not undertaken the Data 
Cards Standards training must 
complete the relevant training on the 
Learning Lounge immediately. 

Going forward procedure to be 
established to ensure that all new 
officers take the card payments 
training as part of their induction.

Responsible Manager:
Museums Audience Manager

Action:
Review all staff working with credit card 
payments and ensure training is 
completed

Implementation date:
30/9/19

2 Medium Security

Left Items
There is no procedure for 
unattended items, left within the 
Museum & Art Gallery buildings.

Testing identified that Art Gallery 
and Museum Staff have not 
completed the Worcester City 
Council terrorism training.

Access
Testing identified there is 1 key 
available to open and lock the main 
doors in the foyer. This key is left in 
the door from 7am to 10.30am until 
the museum opens and from 
4.30pm when the museum closes to 

Potential risk of injury to 
staff and damage to 
collections within the 
building should there be a 
terrorist attack.

Potential to prevent exit 
from this fire escape should 
the key be missing which 
could result in serious injury 

Ensure there is an appropriate 
procedure in place which staff are 
familiar with for unaccompanied items 
and staff remain vigilant at all times. 
Liaise with People Services to ensure 
front line and office staff receive the 
appropriate terrorism training.

Record where spare keys are held and 
regularly monitor their existence and 
consider the best and most 
appropriate access/exit requirements 
as part of the planned foyer changes.

Responsible Manager:
Senior Curator

Action:
Ensure front line team have completed 
terrorism training

Review, complete and issue unattended 
items procedure

Complete and issue instructions for new 
swipe card system on front door and set 
up on learning lounge

Implementation date:
30/9/19

Responsible Manager:

P
age 12



Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

7pm   when the building is locked. 
The key is left in the door due to 
these doors being a fire exit. There 
is a maintenance program in place 
to alter the locks to provide better 
security and exit in the event of a 
fire.

Visitor Recording
There are 2 visitor registers held on 
the ground floor. 1 in the shop and 
1 within the main office. The 
register in the main office indicated 
that it is not always being 
completed correctly with times that 
visitors leave the building and who 
they are visiting not entered. There 
is also the potential for tail gating 
through both the Taylor’s Lane door 
and through the door leading from 
the shop into the main office.

CCTV
Testing found that although there is 
CCTV installed and operational. The 
quality of the images from the CCTV 
within the Museum & Art Gallery 
and Museum are poor and may not 
provide sufficient evidence if 
needed. 

or loss of life to staff and 
visitors in the building 
outside normal opening 
hours. There is also the 
potential for theft from the 
shop if the door has been 
unlocked and left open 
during the hours the shop is 
not manned.

Potential for impact on the 
security of the Art Gallery & 
Museum if visitors are not 
signed out or their 
whereabouts not known 
when visiting other parts of 
the building. Potential for 
the public to enter 
unauthorised areas of the 
building which could result 
in a breach of security and 
harm to the staff, building 
or contents.

Potential for the lack of 
good quality CCTV image 
evidence if needing to 
investigation an incident or 
means to prevent an 
incident occurring.

Liaise with Property Services and the 
Facility Team to ensure the Art Gallery 
& Museum maintain a fit for purpose 
access procedure to track visitors 
when entering, moving around and 
exiting the building.

Risk assess areas within the Museum & 
Art Gallery most at risk from potential 
theft. Consider the appropriateness of 
the CCTV images to ensure they are fit 
for purpose. 

Museums Manager

Action:
Review access procedures during foyer 
project

Implementation date:
28/2/20

Responsible Manager:
Head of Property Services

Action:
Review current CCTV system and 
include replacement in capital planning

Implementation date:
31/12/19

Responsible Manager:
Facilities Team Leader

Action:
Ensure team have been issued with 
front door instructions

Review and implement new signing in 
procedure in city offices

Implementation date:
30/9/19

3 Medium Café Contracts

The Commandery Contract Joint 
Agreement needs updating as a 
result of the change of hosting 
arrangements from the County 

Reputational damage 
between the County Council 
and City Council if there is a 
contractual dispute. 

Review the Commandery contract joint 
agreement document with legal and 
make any necessary changes as a 
result of the transfer of the service 

Responsible Manager:
Deputy Director (Governance)

Action:
Review and update contract alongside 
Joint Museums Agreement

P
age 13



Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

Council to Worcester City Council. 
The Museum Manager is aware that 
this is outstanding.

Testing found there is no specific 
clause within the MAG Café 
Agreement for catering, requesting 
Annual Accounts. Although the 
Agreement does state the Café is to 
provide the City Council with a 
statement of turnover for the 
preceding calendar month together 
with any evidence reasonably 
required this is currently taking 
place on a quarterly basis. 

Potential loss of income due 
to the current contract 
arrangements being 
deployed.  

from County Council to Worcester City 
Council. 

Establish a procedure   to ensure the 
timely and correct amount is invoiced 
as per the Agreement which is 
reconciled monthly and yearly against 
annual accounts.

Implementation date:
30/10/19

Responsible Manager:
Museums Manager

Action:
Establish invoice procedure

Implementation date:
31/12/19

end

P
age 14



APPENDIX 4
Audit Report Follow Up Programme.

Audit Year

Date 
Final 
Audit 

Report 
Issued

Service 
Area Assurance

Number of High, Medium and 
Low priority 

Recommendations FOLLOW UP
1st 2nd 3rd

      

High and Medium 
Priorities 6mths after 
final report issued as 
long as 
implementation date 
has passed

High and Medium 
Priorities still 
outstanding 
3mths after 
previous follow 
up as long as 
implementation 
date has passed

2018/19
Tourism 
Strategy

2018/19 7th October 
2018

Economic 
Development

Moderate The audit report made 1 high and 2 
medium priority recommendations in 
relation to budget monitoring, action 
plan review and tourism marketing.

High priority 
recommendation has 
been satisfied in regard 
to budget monitoring.  
Follow up planned for 
October 2019 to coincide 
with the completion of 
the implementation plan.

Follow up was 
completed in 
October-19 and 
found that all 
recommendations 
have been 
completed. No 
further follow up 
required. 

General Data 
Protection 
Regulations

2018/19 14th 
January 
2019

Legal Follow Up 
Review 

Reported 1 ‘high’, 3 ‘medium’ 
priorities in Privacy Impact 
Assessments, Consent, GDPR 
Training and Information Audits.

November 2019

Payroll 2018/19 3rd May 
2019

Finance Moderate Reported 2 ‘high’ and 2 ‘moderate’ 
findings in Calculation of employer 
pension contributions, Emerging risk 
of data input to system, claiming of 
expenses and Review of access 
rights. Follow up in 6 months

To be followed up as part 
of the planned Payroll 
audit due to take place 
in Q4, January to 
March 2020.   

Cemeteries and 
Crematorium

2018/19 26th April 
2019

Community 
Services

Moderate Reported 2 'high' and 1 'medium' 
priority recommendations in relation 
to system reports, payment card 
standards training and reconciliation 

To be picked up as part 
of the 2019/20 audit Q3

A follow up in 
October 2019 found 
that out of the two 
'high' and 1 

P
age 15



Audit Year

Date 
Final 
Audit 

Report 
Issued

Service 
Area Assurance

Number of High, Medium and 
Low priority 

Recommendations FOLLOW UP
1st 2nd 3rd

of monies received in advance. A 
follow up will take place in 3 
months time

'medium' priority 
recommendations 
all had been 
satisfactorily 
implemented. No 
further follow ups 
are required.

Front Line 
Housing

2018/19 5th 
September 
2019

Housing Limited Reported 2 'high' and 2 'medium' 
priority recommendations in Access 
to System, Jigsaw System Customer 
Risk Assessments, Temporary 
Accommodation Customer Data and 
Documents and Resilience.  A follow 
up will take place in 3 months 
time.

Dec-19

Welfare 
Assistance

2018/19 13th June 
2019

Housing Significant Reported 2 medium priorities in The 
authorisation of awards relating to 
the scheme.  A follow up will take 
place in 6 months.

Dec-19

2019/20
Art Gallery & 
Museum

2019/20 20th 
September 
2019

Economic Env. Moderate Reported 1 'high' and 2 'medium' 
priority recommendations in Payment 
Card Standards Training, Security 
and Café Contracts.  A follow up 
will take place in 6 month.

Mar-20

Health & Safety 2019/20 15th 
November 
209

Cleaner & 
Greener

 Follow up Audit of the 2018/19.  
The follow up found that the two high 
priority and the two medium priority 
recommendations had been partially 
implemented but the direction of 
travel is very positive.  Further 
follow up will be completed in 3 
months.

Follow up review has 
been completed with 
outcomes reported 
before Audit 
Committee December 
2019.

Further follow up Feb 
2020

end

P
age 16



Conclusion:

There are no exceptions to report.

IA considers, overall, progress is being made by the respective managers and services with regard to the 
implementation of their action plans against reported Internal Audit recommendations. Although there are a 
couple of audits whereby work continues it is considered that there are legitimate reasons why this is the 
case (for example continuing development, or proposed system changes) or, non material risk items. Core 
financial and ICT audits are followed up as part of the annual audits. 

P
age 17



Appendix 5

Quality Assurance Improvement Plan (QAIP) for 2019/20.

Actions for points 1, 2 & 5 reported as completed before 20th September 2019.  Further progress has been made in regard to point 3 
below and monitoring remains in place for point 4 as indicated below.

Action 
No.

Area to be 
actioned Outcome required Action 

To be 
undertaken 
by: 

Date to be 
completed Completed

Further 
Action 
Required

3 2240 - 
Approving 
Work prior to 
starting

Develop a process 
where by we can QA 
the testing 
programme prior to 
testing being 
undertaken, and to 
ensure that a formal 
sign off has taken 
place by either Head 
of Internal Audit or 
Team Leader

Engage with staff via 
Team Meetings to 
agree a process and 
to adjust the 
methodology to 
reflect the initial sign 
off prior to the 
testing commencing.

Audit Team 
Leader

Dec-19 Ongoing.
Included in July 
Team Meeting.  

Feedback 
collated 
during 
August/ 
September 
with live 
running 
October 2019 
onwards.  
Monitoring 
being 
undertaken to 
ensure fully 
embedded. 

November:
Live running 
commenced.  
Monitoring 
continuing. 

P
age 18



Action 
No.

Area to be 
actioned Outcome required Action 

To be 
undertaken 
by: 

Date to be 
completed Completed

Further 
Action 
Required

4 2420 - Timely 
Completion of 
Stages

To make 
improvements in line 
with completing all 
stages of audits in a 
timely manner.

Stage monitoring will 
be picked up via 1-2-
1's and the report 
monitoring will be 
picked up with the 
Audit Tracker 
"Response" tab (and 
discussed in 1-2-1's).

Audit Team 
Leader

Immediate 
implementation 
with ongoing 
monitoring 
throughout the 
year

First phase 
implementation 
completed but 
remains 
ongoing. 

Continue to 
monitor to 
31st March 
2020 to 
ensure fully 
embedded.

November:
Monitoring 
continuing.

P
age 19



Page 20



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 18th December 2019

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal Audit 
Shared Service

Subject: DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2020-21

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee considers the draft annual internal audit plan and key 
performance indicators.

2. Background

2.1 To present the Worcester City Council Draft Internal Audit Operational Plan (see 
Appendix 1) and the Internal Audit Shared Services set of key performance indicators 
for 2020/21 (see Appendix 2) for consideration.

2.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2018 
to “maintain in accordance with proper practices an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control”. 

2.3 To aid compliance with the regulation, the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (as amended) details that “Internal auditing is an independent, 
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an 
organisation's operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control, and governance processes”.

3. Audit Objectives

3.1 The objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are to:

 examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control 
and risk management across the Council and recommend arrangements to address 
weaknesses as appropriate; 

 examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with 
legislation and the Council’s objectives, policies and procedures; 

 examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the Council’s assets and 
interests are adequately protected and effectively managed;

 

Page 21 Agenda Item 6



 undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity in 
accordance with Council policies and procedures and relevant legislation; and

 advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other 
organisational changes.

3.2    Formulation of Annual Plan

WIASS operates an Internal Audit Charter which sets out the standards to which it 
operates for this Council.  The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21, which is included at 
Appendix 1, is a risk based plan which takes into account the adequacy of the Council’s 
risk management, performance management, challenges, other assurance processes as 
well as organisational objectives and priorities.  It has been based upon the risk 
priorities per the Corporate and Service risk registers as indicated in the Covalent 
system. Local knowledge, rolled forward review areas, large spend budget areas have 
also been considered, and, direct association has been made to the City Plan.  The draft 
Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 has been agreed with the section 151 officer and has 
been considered by Heads of Service and CLT.  It has been formulated with the aim to 
ensure Worcester City Council meets its strategic purposes and delivers the City Plan 
and has directly linked the various aspects to identify the ‘golden thread’ in regards to 
the City Plan, risk identification to Service delivery.  It is brought before the Audit and 
Governance Committee in draft format as the involvement of the Committee is 
considered to be an important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the 
internal control assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

We recognise there are other review functions which provide other sources of 
assurance, both internally and externally, (e.g. ICT Public Service Network assurance 
testing) over aspects of the Council’s operations.  Where possible we will seek to place 
reliance on such work thus reducing the internal audit coverage as required.

To try to reduce duplication of effort we understand the importance of working with the 
External Auditors.  The audit plan is shared with the external auditors for information 
along with some of the work that is undertaken during a review.

3.3 Resource Allocation

The Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 has been based upon a resource allocation of 327 
productive audit delivery days. A summary of the days as well as the detailed plan 
provision has been included with the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 at Appendix 1.  
Those areas that are considered to have a ‘high’ priority will be targeted first where 
practicable in regard to the plan delivery.  A number of areas have been included in the 
plan and are shared with other Partners.  Budgets are split across different Partner audit 
plans to reduce the burden on any one Council but allow the delivery of reviews where 
services are shared. An assessment was made what to include in the plan based on the 
overall risk and governance profile.  A watching brief will be kept on the financial 
systems and a rolling programme of testing will take place but they are not considered 
as the key risk areas due to embedded process, control and anti fraud measures. 
Operational support days are included to give a little flexibility and contingency in the 
plan e.g. consultancy.  These are necessary to support the delivery of the plan as a 
whole. Areas that were considered to be emerging risks or areas of mitigated risk but 

Page 22



require a watching brief have been highlighted for transparency purposes but will not be 
included in the plan for next year. There is a distinct possibility that they will be included 
in the 2021/22 audit plan.

Due to the continuing changing environment that exists in Local Government the plan 
must be seen as a framework for Internal Audit work for the forthcoming year.  There is 
a need for flexibility in the plan due to a changing risk profile as well as emerging risks.  
To ensure flexibility there is the possibility that the plan will be updated during the year 
in order to address such challenges.

 
3.4 Financial implications

The estimated charge to the Council for the Internal Audit service for 2020/21 based 
upon this plan will be notified to the Client Officer Group when all the client plan days 
across the Shared Service have been agreed.

3.5 Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan

Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 will be closely 
monitored by the Head of Service of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 
and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which comprises the 
section 151 officers from client organisations’ and to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on a quarterly basis.  The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared 
Service will be determined by the performance against a set of performance indicators 
which have been developed for the service.  These have been agreed with the Council’s 
section 151 officer and are included at Appendix 2.  Performance against these 
indicators will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at the frequency 
stipulated in Appendix 2.

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 
Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 23



APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF DETAILED DRAFT PLAN 

Planned Days 2020/21
Financials 118
Corporate Work 26
Systems Audits 113

Sub total 257

Audit management meetings 30
Corporate meetings / reading 20
Annual plans, reports and 
Audit Committee support 20

Sub total 70

TOTAL Audit Days 327

Page 24



APPENDIX 1
Draft 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan

Audit Area Corporate Link
Risk 
Register 
link

Partner 
Request

2020/21 
Days

     

Financial Services     

Debtors Underpins City Plan 
requirements   5

Main Ledger/Budget Monitor/Bank Rec Underpins City Plan 
requirements   4

Creditors# Underpins City Plan 
requirements   0

Payroll (contract monitoring/inhouse provision, 
reconciliations)

Underpins City Plan 
requirements   16

Treasury Management Underpins City Plan 
requirements   3

Cash Receipting Underpins City Plan 
requirements   10

Sub Total    38

Council Tax* Underpins City Plan 
requirements  * 6

Benefits* Underpins City Plan 
requirements  * 8

NNDR* Underpins City Plan 
requirements SF-SRK-002 * 6

Client Side Checking Civica* Underpins City Plan 
requirements  * 60

FINANCIALS TOTAL    118

     

Corporate     

IT Audit* Underpins City Plan 
requirements CRK-012 * 6

Project Management (corporate policy -v- 
reality)

Underpins City Plan 
requirements s151  10

Customer Services (policy, performance) **
Underpins 
everything s151  10

CORPORATE TOTAL    26

     

Systems Audits     

Community     

Car parking (new machines, performance, team and 
process changes)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets. 

CS-SRK-
015  14

Operations    0 

Legal & Democratic     

Guildhall (Income, events management incl. 
charitable events, business plan)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

  12

Strategic Housing     

CCP (delivery against contract, performance, 
variances, monitoring)

Stronger and 
Connected 
Communities

CLT  8

Page 25



Audit Area Corporate Link
Risk 
Register 
link

Partner 
Request

2020/21 
Days

Disabled Facilities Grants (limited scope - grant 
issue sign off)

Stronger and 
Connected 
Communities

Mandatory 
requirement 
for the 
provision of 
grant

Worcestershire 
County 
Council

4

Asset Management     

Property Investment (Commercial Strategy)
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

CLT  4

Property (Health and safety, certifications, statutory 
landlord requirements)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

CLT 10

Economic Development and Planning     

The Kiln 2-4 Copenhagen Street (business 
plan & WCC risk exposure)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

  10

GDPR – (Consistent use of personal details, best 
practice)

Good Governance & 
Best Practice

Deputy 
Director 
request

9

Other Operational Work     

Contingency, advisory, consultancy (incl. 
H&S), fraud and enquiry and 
investigations incl. NFI

   20

Completion of prior year's audits    10

Report Follow Up (previous reviews)    12

SYSTEMS TOTAL    113

Plan Support     

Support budget incl:  all meetings, 
annual planning, reports, committee 
support

   70

SUPPORT TOTAL    70

TOTAL PLAN DAYS    327

# As part of the shared service for Debtors and Creditors the audits are split between the 
Malvern Hills District Council internal audit plan and the Worcester City Council internal audit 
plan thus giving coverage and assurance but reducing the overall number of days.

*Shared budgets with two other Partners.  Budgets are consolidated to deliver the review for 
all three Partners. 

**New potential risk area days due to the Service returning to Worcester City Council.

Financial audits will be undertaken on a rolling basis using an analytical analysis to identify 
any potential developing risk areas.  Full reviews will be undertaken if the emerging risks 
and/or trends are identified due to significant change e.g. people or systems.

Page 26



APPENDIX 2

Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2020-2021
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured 
against some of the following key performance indicators for 2020/21. Other key 
performance indicators link to overall governance requirements of Worcester City 
Council e.g. KPI 4, 5 and 6.  The 2020/21 position will be populated on a cumulative 
basis throughout the year.

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended).

KPI Trend/Target 
requirement

2020/21 
Position (as 

at 
XXXXXXXX)

Frequency of 
Reporting

Operational
1 No. of audits 

achieved during 
the year 

Per target Target = 12 
(minimum)

Delivered = 
XX

When Audit 
Committee convene

2 Percentage of 
Plan delivered

>90% of agreed 
annual plan

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

3 Service 
productivity

Positive 
direction year on 

year (Annual 
target 74%)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Monitoring & Governance
4 No. of ‘high’ 

priority 
recommendations 

Downward
(minimal)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

5 No. of moderate 
or below 
assurances

Downward
(minimal)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

6 ‘Follow Up’ 
results

Management 
action plan 

implementation 
date exceeded

(nil)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Customer Satisfaction
7 No. of customers 

who assess the 
service as 
‘excellent’

Upward
(increasing)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 18th December 2019

Report of: Corporate Director, Finance and Resources

Subject: CORPORATE PROJECTS GATEWAY PROCESS

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee notes the Project Management Process introduced to 
strengthen the management of key projects undertaken by the Council.

2. Background

2.1 At its meeting of 9 October 2019 the Committee requested a report on the Council’s 
Project Management System. The system was established during 2018/19 to 
strengthen the Council’s approach to the management of major projects and is now 
being implemented for all high-value projects where there are considered to be 
potential risks. The Council’s Corporate Projects and Transformation Team is 
responsible for developing and managing the process, although the nominated 
project managers are responsible for implementing the process for each individual 
project.

2.2 Projects within Worcester City Council vary considerably in type, size, value and 
complexity. The Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) approved the new project 
monitoring and reporting process to help improve delivery and manage risk. The 
process aligns with Worcester City Council's existing project reporting process, but 
additional governance was implemented to ensure a more formal approval process 
was followed. 

2.3 The additional governance steps, called Project Gateways, are in place throughout 
the whole life cycle of the project and enable every project to be reviewed at service 
progress meetings, against standard KPI’s, prior to being approved by one of the 
Corporate Directors to move through to the next gateway stage. 

2.4 The project governance process is continually monitored and reviewed through a 
Corporate Programme Board that meets six-weekly. Since its launch in August 2018, 
there have been a number of other governance protocols introduced, including Key 
Project reporting and the introduction of a more structured lessons-learned process 
called  “Post Project Evaluation” which is due to be rolled out in Dec 2019. This latter 
stage was introduced as a result of the Internal Audit review of the Perdiswell Leisure 
Centre/Sansome Walk pool projects.

2.5 Details of the four project gateways and of the operation of the system are set out in 
the remainder of the report.

Page 29 Agenda Item 7



3. Information 

3.1 The Project Approval Gateway Process consists of four stages which are described in 
more detail below. A visual representation of the process on a single page is 
provided at Appendix 1 for easy reference.

Stage 0 – Concept & Review (S0C)
Project ideas can generate from many areas within the Council. Stage 0 ensures that 
these ideas are ring fenced and have enough merit to be taken forward before 
valuable resources and time is allocated.  Although project  briefs, resources, risks 
and funding can be discussed at stage 0, the main purpose of this stage is to 
document the proposal, so that the idea can evaluated, prior to gaining approval 
from the relevant Corporate Director, in discussion with the relevant Committee 
Chair or Ward Member, as appropriate. 

Stage 1 – Project Feasibility (S1PF) (Outline Business case)
Stage 1 helps to solidify the idea into a project. A project proposal form is completed 
by a nominated project lead from within the relevant service area. The project 
proposal form outlines more detail about the proposed project, it will also ensure 
that the correct resourcing, funding and timescales are in place and there is a clear 
brief with set objectives. This information helps the Director make a more informed 
decision and challenge the project’s objectives and benefits. 

A copy of the Proposal Form template is attached at Appendix 2.

Stage 2 Project Evaluation (S2PE) (Full Business case) 
The Evaluation Stage of the project is the most critical part of the gateway process 
and is used to evaluate the project’s full value.  Although the headings of the project 
evaluation are similar to the feasibility proposal, the project evaluation process 
requires a much more detailed response and gives the Director the last opportunity 
to challenge and review the project’s objectives & benefits, risks and value for 
money. 

Depending on the type of project and its complexity, Committee Members, public 
consultation or external consultants may be required to help evaluate the project 
further, therefore time periods may vary for the evaluation process. 

Once all stages of the project evaluation have been completed, either the Corporate 
Project Board or Corporate Leadership Team will need to formally approve the 
project and notify the project delivery team to move to Stage 3, Delivery & 
Implementation.

A copy of the Evaluation Proposal Form is attached at Appendix 3. This incorporates 
a risk matrix to help ensure that all relevant project risks are captured and acts as 
the main business case for the project.

Stage 3, Delivery and Implementation
Stage 3 moves the project out of the Worcester City Council governance approval 
process and into the delivery and implementation stage. To ensure the project is 
being monitored, the project delivery milestones should be added to Pentana at this 
stage and project management monitoring protocols introduced. Due to the range of 
projects at Worcester City Council this stage needs to remain bespoke to the specific 

Page 30



project and the project may be handed over to a new delivery team with the correct 
skill base to ensure effective delivery. 

Stage 4, Post Project Evaluation (PPE)
Stage 4 of the gateway approval process addressed as “Post Project Evaluation” 
(PPE) a process that gives the delivery team an opportunity to retrospectively review 
a project’s life cycle. It is important that the culture of this process is not used as an 
opportunity the lay the blame on individuals, instead used as a positive opportunity 
to improve our culture of delivering projects through lessons learned.

As noted above, this stage has not yet been implemented. The intentions are that 
the PPE will take place as soon as possible and no more than three months after 
project completion. However, the PPE process will remain open for a 12 month 
period so any additional project issues that may occur within the first 12 months of 
the project can also be added to the PPE Register. The review will enable the delivery 
teams to review a project throughout its whole life cycle and highlight any lessons 
learned within the project.   
             
The lessons learned will vary in complexity and severity. The PPE review process will 
prioritise and highlight any of the project's issues and target up to 6 subjects for 
review by the team. Then the highlighted issues will be evaluated through a 
standard form called a PPE Register (PPER) that records the lessons learned, future 
mitigation or continual improvement actions required.

Copies of the Post-project Evaluation Process, which is used to prompt review of the 
project, and the template form for completing the evaluation are provided at 
Appendix 4.
  

3.2 Project Governance

To support the gateway process outlined above, a set of arrangements have been 
developed which are flexible and can be adapted according to the needs of each 
project. While there is a standardised approach, this flexibility allows for greater 
concentration of time and resources on projects with greater scope or higher risk and 
means that smaller projects are not overburdened by bureaucracy. These 
arrangements are considered in more detail below.

3.3 Project Meetings

Corporate Programme Board Meeting (CPB) 6-8 weekly meetings 
The Corporate Programme Board is chaired by one of the Corporate Directors or the 
Corporate Projects & Programme Manager when the Director is unavailable and 
keeps an overview of all projects currently underway. The emphasis of the meeting 
is to review & approve Stage 2 project evaluation proposals and ensure there is 
synergy across the various service programmes. The CPB meeting focuses on the 
overall risks associated with the projects, e.g. governance, delivery plans, finance, 
quality, resource allocation and performance.

Corporate Programme Progress Meeting (CPP) 4-6 weekly meetings. 
The Corporate Programme Progress Meeting (CPP) is chaired by the Corporate 
Director for the programme or project officers if the service directors are unavailable. 
The meeting considers all the projects under the remit of the relevant Corporate 
Director in more detail that the Corporate progamme Board and is also supported 

Page 31



and attended by the dedicated in-house team of specialists, which includes 
representatives from Policy & Strategy, Finance and Property. The emphasis of the 
meeting is to report solely on the progress of each project and focus on the day to 
day delivery and risks associated with the project, e.g. delivery plan, finance and 
quality. 

Checkpoint Meeting (CM)
Checkpoint Meetings are called by a project lead when a project has significant 
issues that need to be reviewed in more detail or when there is a project risk that 
could potentially delay delivery. A checkpoint meeting can be scheduled in advance 
or introduced at any point within the life cycle of a project and is deemed a formal 
process. Not all delivery team members will be in attendance, therefore formal 
agendas and action logs are required.  

Scrum Meeting (SM) 
Scrum meetings are introduced as and when required throughout the life cycle of the 
project and are often driven road blocks that appear within the project. The 
emphasis of scrum is to respond to any unplanned risks, assess and agree 
mitigation, then quickly and efficiently implement the solution. 

Scrum meetings are also used as an opportunity to give a quick verbal update on a 
project's progress, especially when the projects are nearing completion or about to 
go live. These meetings are less formal and are based around a more practical 
solution.

3.4 Project Delivery 

Project delivery teams are resourced from our in-house support services that are 
selected by the project director’s part of Stage 1 (Feasibility). There may be 
occasions when additional external resources are required, particularly if the project 
is in a specialised area. The role of the service project delivery team is to support the 
project lead with their expertise and monitoring potential risks and keeping the 
projects on track.   

Service Project Delivery teams should consist of some or all of the roles set out in 
the following table, according to the size, scope and risks of the project.

Role Function 

Service Lead & 
Project Sponsor

Establishing and maintaining a comprehensive 
understanding of the project’s resources and delivery 
requirements and adjusting these as required 

Programme/Project  
Officer

Driving and monitoring the delivery of the service 
programme/project and working with the programme 
team to reduce project road blocks 

Financial 
Representative

Monitoring and reporting on projects, budgets throughout 
its life cycle and supporting with any cost analysis 
requirements  

Page 32



Policy & Strategy 
Resource

To support programme team quality and standardisation, 
including governance gateway reports, Pentana 
monitoring and policy procedure and amendments. 

Legal 
Representative 

To support with the delivery of the project around a 
specific task associated with their expertise and 
knowledge  

Human Resources
To support with the delivery of the project around a 
specific task associated with their expertise and 
knowledge  

ITC Representative
To support with the delivery of the project around a 
specific task associated with their expertise and 
knowledge  

Property & Assist 
Management 

To support with the delivery of the project around a 
specific task associated with their expertise and 
knowledge  

Facilities 
Management 

To support with the delivery of the project around a 
specific task associated with their expertise and 
knowledge  

3.5 Reporting 

Pentana

Pentana is our in-house reporting system for projects and service plans. Pentana 
shows performance against targets and performs data analysis on Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs). Pentana consolidates actions into milestone targets for each stage 
of a project and uses auto-reminders to help project managers keep on track by 
automatically reminding them, through the email system, when updates are needed. 
It is the means by which Members are appraised of project progress through the 
relevant Committee scorecards that are reviewed quarterly.

Matrix Reporting

The Matrix is a spreadsheet tracking system that the Corporate Projects Team 
manually updates. The Matrix records all non-service plan projects that are in 
progress. The Matrix allows the Corporate Projects Team to update the Corporate 
leadership Team on the progress of the project and any performance issues they 
need to be aware of that may not be covered within the Pentana reporting process. 

The Matrix also has a project budget allocation and expenditure section, which is 
automatically updated through a controlled finance spreadsheet. This allows the 
Directors to track the project expenditure audit trail.

Page 33



Dashboards, Project Trackers

The Key Projects Dashboard is a live document throughout the project’s life cycle 
that covers most of the main reporting areas required for a project, including project 
brief, project risks, forecasted actions and tasks, outstanding tasks, allocated 
budgets, expenditure to date, project start & finish date and project resources all in 
one place and at a glance. The dashboard automatically updates the progress of 
tasks from their recorded due date and highlights overdue actions on the risk table 
which is located on the main page. Through the use of the actions tab and risk tab, 
the dashboard can also be used as an audit trail for when actions and decisions were 
taken.

Project Delivery Plan

The project delivery plan is a bespoke delivery plan template produced within 
Microsoft Project, it forecasts and lists all the critical tasks and takes the user 
through gateways 0-4. Depending on the complexity of the project implementation, 
an independent implementation programme may be produced for the Stage 4. 

Continual Improvement (Achieving Excellence)

The Gateway process has been developed around Worcester City Council’s services. 
There are formal service management structures and standard project gateways 
used for project delivery. The gateway process is implemented and monitored by the 
Corporate Project Team, who also support the service project leads and sponsors, 
through the approvals and delivery process.  

The gateway process continues to be developed and improved through delivery 
teams’ feedback and lesson learned. The gateway process is also regularly reviewed 
by the Corporate Directors at the Corporate Programme Board and Corporate 
Programmes Progress Meeting. 

Ward(s): All wards
Contact Officer: Tony Catchpowle, Team Manager: Corporate Projects and 

Transformation
01905 722166
Tony.Catchpowle@Worcester.gov.uk

Background Papers: None 

APPENDIX 1 - Corporate Project Gateway Approvals process

APPENDIX 2 - Corporate Projects Feasibility Proposal Template

APPENDIX 3 - Corporate Projects Evaluation Proposal Template

APPENDIX 4 - Post-Project Evaluation Process and Register Template
 

Page 34

mailto:Tony.Catchpowle@worcester.gov.uk


 
  

STAGE 4 – Post Project Evaluation   

• 3 month  review period 
• Lesson Leant    
• 12 months defects   

• Reporting  
• Delivery Programme  
• Resourcing 

 
 

(S4 PPE) 

 
  

 
  

  

 
  

• Strategic Brief 
• Objectives & Benefits 

 
 

STAGE 0 – CONCEPT 

• Overview/Background 
• Reason for Submission 
• Objectives & Benefits 
• Possible Risks 
 
 

STAGE 1 - PROJECT FEASIBILITY 

• Milestones dates   
• Gateway approval  

• Agree Funding & budgets 
• Agree Milestones Dates  
• Formal Gateway approval   

 

STAGE 2 - PROJECT EVALUATION  

• Full Cost Analysis & 
Budget allocation 

• Detailed Objectives & 
Benefits  Analysis 

• Additional supporting 
information 

• Additional Resources 
Requirements  

• Delivery  & implementation 
Strategy  

• Expenditure Forecast  
• Formal Gateway Approval  

STAGE 3 - DELIVERY & IMPLEMENTATION   

• Delivery Team    
• Recruitment & Training  

• Delivery Programme  
• Handover /Soft landing  

 

 
Gateway Approval 

(Service Directors Approval required) 

Stage 1 

 
Gateway Approval 

(Service Director Approval 
required) 
Stage 2 

 
Gateway Approval 

(Service Director Approval required) 
Stage 3 

Corporate Programme Gateway 
Approvals Process 

2
-3

 w
e

e
ks  

Tim
e

 lin
e

  
3

 - 6
 m

o
n

th
s  

A
s  p

ro
gram

m
ed

   

(S0C) 

(S1PF) 

• Agree Corporate Projects or  
      Key project reporting   
• Activate Pentana   
• Proposed Evaluation Team 

(S3DI) 

(S2PE) 

• Full Risk Assessment  
• Full Delivery Plan  
• Variations  to the Brief 

Review 
• Review Operational  

policy requirements  

 
In Operation  

(Corporate Projects Services ) 
Stage 4 

1
2

- m
o

n
th

s   

• Concept Review  
• Budgets Estimates 

 

• Communications strategy 
• Procurement  

 

• Communications 
•  Governance & Process  

 

Appendix 20 - Corporate Programme Gateway Approval Process 

Page 35 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Feasiblity Proposal Template

Corporate Projects
Feasibility Proposal

(STAGE 0 to 1)

Department: Click here to enter text.
Submitted By: Click here to enter text.  
Date: Click here to enter text.  

Project Working Title:  Click here to enter text.

1. Recommendation

2. Overview

3. Proposal Details 

4. What are the Proposed Objectives/Benefits

5. Project Delivery Team & Timeframes

6. Funding Requirements

Page 37 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Appendix 1 - Feasiblity Proposal Template

Corporate Projects
Feasibility Proposal

(STAGE 0 to 1)

7. Data Protection

8. Additional Information

Meeting Where Approval Was Issued

Approved By:

Date:

Page 38



Appendix 4 - Evaluation Proposal Template

Corporate Projects
Evaluation Proposal

(STAGE 2 to 3)

Department: Click here to enter text.
Submitted By: Click here to enter text.  
Feasibility Approval Date: Click here to enter text.  

Project Working Title:

1. Recommendation/Brief

2. Detailed Overview & Background

3. Proposal Details 

4. What are the Proposed Objectives/Benefits

5. Project Delivery Team & Timeframes

Project Sponsor: Project Lead:
Additional Project Resources Requirements:
Department Name Assigned Date Notes
Finance
Procurement
ICT
Corporate Projects
External
Legal
HR

Page 39 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



Appendix 4 - Evaluation Proposal Template

Corporate Projects
Evaluation Proposal

(STAGE 2 to 3)

6. Budgetary Requirements 

Funding Requirements £ Timescale
Resources 
Equipment 
External Resourcing 
Service Delay 

7. Risk Management

(Please scroll down to Appendix A to complete Risk management Information)

8. Data Protection

9. Sustainability

10. Additional Supporting Information

Meeting Where Approval Was Issued:

Approved By:

Date:

Page 40



Appendix 4 - Evaluation Proposal Template

Corporate Projects
Evaluation Proposal

(STAGE 2 to 3)

Appendix A

Risk Description Likelihood Impact Consequence Mitigation
1 - Low
2 - Medium
3 – High

1 - Noticeable
2 - Significant
3 - Critical

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

Appendix 7 – Post Project Evaluation Process 

 

 

Post Project Evaluation Process  

 
Overview 

Stage 4 of the gateway approval process addressed as “Post Project Evaluation” (PPE) a process that gives the 

delivery team an opportunity to retrospectively review a project’s life cycle. It is important that the culture of 

this process is not used as an opportunity the lay the blame on individuals, instead used as a positive 

opportunity to improve our culture of delivering projects through lessons learned. 

 

The PPE will take place as soon as possible and no more than three months after project completion. Project 

issues will be recorded on the PPE Register. However, the PPE process will remain open for a 12 month period 

so any additional project issues that may occur within the first 12 months of the project can also be added to 

the PPE register. The review enables the delivery teams to review projects throughout its whole life cycle and 

highlight any lessons learned within the project.    

              

The lessons learned will vary in complexity and severity, the PPE review process will prioritise and highlight any 

of  the project's issues and target up to 6 subjects for review by the team. Then the highlighted issues will be 

evaluated through a standard form called a PPE register (PPER) that records the lessons learned, future 

mitigation or continual improvement actions required.   

 

Coordination  

A post project evaluation register will be sent to the project delivery team involved in the PPE review process 

in a draft format. Each team member will complete the draft register and send this back to the corporate 

project officer to merge into one final register. The corporate project officer, with the service director, will 

prioritise the top six items for review at the formal PPE meeting.  The attendance to PPE meetings can vary 

subject to the project complexity, but as a minimum the service director, project sponsor and lead should be in 

attendance 

 

It is proposed that these meetings be swift, proactive and focused where the delivery team review the merged 

final PPE register, the register will be reviewed for accuracy and transparency and ensure all lessons learned 

are factually correct. 
 

 

Achieving Excellence 

 

First 3 Months 

Once the PPE register has been assessed, finalised and signed off by the service director, highlighted issues 

within the relevant service will be distributed to the project sponsor for corrective action and monitoring. 

Should the issues highlighted, occur across multiple projects, the corporate project officer will escalate these 

issues to the corporate programme board to be reviewed and improvements implemented. 

 

12 Months   

The project lead will monitor and log any additional lessons learned/issues during the post project evaluation 

12 month period. Once the 12 months have passed, the additional lessons learned/issues raised will be 

distributed to the corporate project officer and service director to review. It will then be at the discretion of 

the service director whether any new issues warrants a full PPE review and further corrective action.  

Page 43 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 9 - Post Project Evaluation Register 

 

Corporate Projects 
Post Project Evaluation Register 

 

 

Project Title:  Project Key Dates Resources Information 
Pentana Ref  Start Date   Committee Ref:  Corp Projects  External   

Funding approval   Finish Date   Project Director  Finance  Stakeholder   

Budget   Defects Completion   Project Sponsor   Property     

Total Expenditure   Date Logged   Project Lead   Legal     
 

Gateway Stages Title/Subject  Issue/Description  Lessons Learned Priority  Mitigation & Continuous Improvement  
(Action) 

 
      

Stage 0 
 CONCEPT 

     

C1      

C2      

C3      

Stage 1 
FEASIBILITY 

     

F1      

F2      

F3      

Stage 2 
EVALUATION 

     

E1      

E2      

E3      

Stage 3 
IMPLEMENTATION 

     

IM1      

IM2      

IM3      

 

P
age 44


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Internal Audit Progress Report to 31st October 2019
	6 Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2020-21
	7 Corporate Projects Gateway Process
	APPENDIX 1 Corporate Programme Gateway Approval Process
	APPENDIX 2 Feasibility Proposal Template
	APPENDIX 3 Evaluation Proposal Template
	APPENDIX 4 Post Project Evaluation
	APPENDIX 4a  Post Project Evaluation Process.pdf (p.1)
	APPENDIX 4b Post Project Evaluation Register.pdf (p.2)



